Agenda - Children, Young People, and Education

Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Hybrid - Committee room 1 Senedd Naomi Stocks

and video conference via Zoom Committee Clerk

Meeting date: 15 January 2026 0300 200 6565

Meeting time: 09.30 SeneddChildren@senedd.wales
Hybrid

Private pre-meeting
09.15 - 09.30

Public meeting
09.30-11.00

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest
09.30

2 Annual Scrutiny of Medr
09.30-11.00 (Pages 1 - 18)
James Owen, Chief Executive, Medr
Giles Cutler, Chief Financial Officer, Medr
Medr Annual Report and Accounts 2024-25

Attached Documents:

Research brief

3 Papers to note
11.00

"(’// Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament


https://laiddocuments.senedd.wales/gen-ld17662-en.pdf

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Information from Stakeholders
(Page 19)

Attached Documents:
Letter to the Chair of the Children, Young People and Education Committee

from the Minister for Children and Social Care

Welsh Government Draft Budget 2026-27
(Pages 20 - 24)

Attached Documents:
Letter to the Chair of the Children, Young People and Education Committee

from the Cabinet Secretary for Education

Information from Stakeholders
(Pages 25 - 26)

Attached Documents:
Letter to the Chair of the Children, Young People and Education Committee

from the Minister for Mental Health and Wellbeing

Welsh Government Draft Budget 2026-27
(Pages 27 - 28)

Attached Documents:
Letter to the Chair of the Children, Young People and Education Committee

from Medr

Motion under Standing Order 17.42(ix) to resolve to exclude the

public from the remainder of this meeting
11.00



Private meeting
11.00 - 12.40

5 Annual Scrutiny of Medr - consideration of the evidence

11.00-11.10
Break
11.10-11.20

6 Teacher recruitment and retention - consideration of the draft
report

11.20 -12.20 (Pages 29 - 191)

Attached Documents:

Draft report

7 School improvement and learner attainment - consideration of
correspondence

12.20 - 12.30 (Pages 192 - 194)

Attached Documents:

Private paper

8 Forward work programme - discussion on the Welsh Government

scrutiny sessions
12.30 -12.40



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 2

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



—t

Agenda ltem 3.1

7
Dawn Bowden AS/MS = ( ﬂ(
Y Gweinidog Plant a Gofal Cymdeithasol J(
Minister for Children and Social Care

2

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

%

//)

X

Ein cyf/Our ref MA/DB/2919/25

Buffy Williams MS
Chair, Children, Young People and Education Committee
Welsh Parliament

16 December 2025

Dear Buffy,

| am pleased to advise that the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable Punishment)
(Wales) Act 2020: Evidence and Data Synthesis, which provides our three-year post
implementation review, has been laid and published today. This is in line with the statutory
duty placed on Welsh Ministers under Section 3 of the Act. A Written Statement has also
been issued to accompany the publication of the report.

The review has provided an opportunity to reflect on the progress made in implementing the
Act. The report offers a comprehensive assessment of the implementation of the legislation
in the areas agreed with your Committee during the passage of the legislation:

the impact on public services;
awareness of the law;

attitudes to physical punishment; and
stakeholder views and experiences.

It draws on a diverse range of data and research sources, including administrative data,
survey data, and data captured from interviews and focus groups conducted through
research projects.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you wish to discuss the findings further or
require additional information.

Yours sincerely,

Dawn Bowden AS/MS
Y Gweinidog Plant a Gofal Cymdeithasol
Minister for Children and Social Care

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd « Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Dawn.Bowden®@llyw.cymru
CF99 1SN Correspondence.Dawn.Bowden@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any coEe@pGrl@leRafg@ivltﬂn Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Dawn.Bowden@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Dawn.Bowden@gov.wales
https://www.gov.wales/children-abolition-defence-reasonable-punishment-wales-act-2020-synthesis-report
https://www.gov.wales/children-abolition-defence-reasonable-punishment-wales-act-2020-synthesis-report

Agenda Item 3.2
Lynne Neagle AS/MS f
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Addysg ’\/ ( f

Cabinet Secretary for Education J’)

Llywodraeth Cymru

Our ref: MA/LN/2290/25
Welsh Government

Buffy Williams MS
Chair — Children, Young People and Education Committee

16 December 2025

Dear Buffy

Thank you for the discussion at the 2026-27 draft budget evidence session on 27 November.
Please find enclosed further information on the areas requested by the Committee at the
meeting.

Technical note on change to the Welsh in Education Budget Expenditure Line (BEL)

There has been a decrease of £2.426m to the Welsh in Education BEL for 2026-27, with the
budget reducing from £6.417m to £3.991m in 2026-27. This does not represent a cut in
funding for Welsh in education - it is a purely administrative transfer of Adnodd’s funding
within this BEL to the Curriculum and Assessment BEL within the Education MEG, following
a change in the sponsorship management role for Adnodd from 1 April 2025. The same
transfer was actioned in the First Supplementary Budget 2025-26 for this financial year.

With Adnodd now fully operational and relationships across the Education Directorate
embedded, we have agreed the transfer of this budget to reflect the ongoing relationship with
Adnodd.

Along with other funding within the Curriculum and Assessment BEL for Adnodd, it takes the
total funding for Adnodd to over £4m in 2026-27 to continue its work in commissioning high
quality bilingual resources in support of the Curriculum for Wales. In its short time of operation,
Adnodd has expanded access to bilingual educational resources, supporting the curriculum
and Made-for-Wales qualifications.

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
0300 0604400

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay Gohebiaeth.Lynne.Neagle@llyw.cymru
Caerdydd « Cardiff Correspondence.Lynne.Neagle@gov.wales
CF99 15N

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in WelB.aQ'k CB@Qﬁd%Qe received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lynne.Neagle@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lynne.Neagle@gov.wales

Learner participation and outcome data in the Seren programme

In March 2026, an end-of-financial-year report will assess Seren’s progress toward the
intended outcomes outlined in its theory of change. This report will establish a benchmark for
reviewing the effectiveness of the newly implemented delivery team, the school and college
support package, revised learner identification guidelines, and the support programme for
individuals commencing degree apprenticeships during 2026-27.

Monthly progress reports will present data on engagement levels among various learner
groups and geographic regions, facilitating the identification of gaps or areas with reduced
participation. This information will support the team in refining engagement strategies where
needed. Additionally, the reports will offer insights into the effectiveness of interventions within
the delivery programme, ensuring optimal value for money.

The benchmark report will be sent to the CYPE Committee in April 2026, and the subsequent
progress reports will be sent in line with the committee meeting schedule. | am including at
annex 1, the November 2025 progress report for stage 3 (Year 12 and13).

An independent review of the Seren Academy has been initiated. This evaluation will examine
Seren's progress since the previous assessment in 2018 and will assess whether the
interventions implemented under the new 2023 operational strategy are achieving the aims
set out in Seren’s Theory of Change. The results will provide definitive insights into effective
and ineffective strategies, informing enhancements to future programmes and contributing to
the refinement of future reporting processes under the new delivery model.

Wider pressures facing the higher education sector

The key contributory factors to the present challenges facing universities are:

e Declines in international student numbers. Following a significant boom in
international student numbers across the UK in the immediate post-pandemic period,
international student numbers declined significantly in 2024 after new UK
Government visa restrictions were introduced.

¢ Intensifying market competition for domestic students. As UK-wide international
student numbers have declined, there is increasing competition for domestic
students. Prestigious and higher-tariff universities have significantly increased their
home student enrolments in the past two years, which has squeezed other parts of
the sector, including several universities in Wales.

¢ Prolonged impact of Brexit. Welsh universities were significant recipients of EU
structural and investment funding, particularly for research and innovation, and the
final strands of this funding only fell away from 2023 onwards. The Higher Education
Statistics Agency (HESA) data shows Welsh universities saw a drop in EU research
funding contracts of £33m in 2023/24.

¢ Increasing costs, including employers National Insurance Contributions, and
Teachers Pensions Scheme costs for post-92 institutions. Unlike other parts of the
education sector, neither the UK Government nor the Welsh Government has been
able to provide additional funding to cover these costs.

Pack Page 21



¢ Although tuition fees are now increasing with inflation, this has followed a decade of
real-terms decline. Whilst Welsh Government funding via Medr is only approximately
10% of the sector’s total turnover, we recognise that is has declined in real terms in
recent years.

Revenue savings for net-zero carbon schools

New schools being designed since January 2022 have been mandated as being Net Zero
Carbon in Operation (NZCiO) meaning that the energy, and therefore carbon used, in the
school over a year is offset by renewable energy preferably generated on site. Carbon used
to build the school called embodied carbon is also measured and currently has a target of
600KgCO2/m2. Our first NZCiO school, South Point Primary, in the Vale of Glamorgan
achieved this goal with photovoltaic array and battery storage giving a positive overall
position, feeding in the excess to the national grid.

Projects like Pen y Dre High School in Merthyr and Mynydd Isa Campus in Flintshire are
designed to generate as much energy as they consume, significantly reducing operational
energy costs. While exact annual savings figures for these NZC schools aren’t published yet,
the expectation is near elimination of energy bills, plus potential revenue from exporting
surplus electricity to the grid or local facilities. In the case of Pen y Dre, a private connection
to the Prince Charles Hospital will see all excess energy generated at the school used in the
local community benefiting the school and the hospital.

Refurbishment and decarbonisation of existing school buildings also benefit from reduced
energy costs. Welsh schools implementing energy efficiency and NZC measures have
achieved substantial reductions in energy bills:

Since 2009, projects supported by Salix Finance in Wales saved £25.8 million on energy bills
over their lifetimes, equating to £1.3 million annually across participating schools.
[salixfinance.co.uk]

Savings from introducing advanced energy management tools or building management
systems typically achieve a 10% reduction which would equate to between £5,000 per annum
to approximately £15,000 per annum dependant on the school size. Further interventions
can increase this saving to the region of 40%. For a large secondary school this could be as
much as £60,000. [energysparks.uk]

Evaluation of the Taith programme

An Interim Stage Evaluation of the Taith programme was published in June 2025, the second
of a three-stage evaluation of the Taith programme. The key aim of the interim evaluation
was to review performance to date and inform the ongoing delivery of Taith and future
investments/policy development in this area.

The evidence discussed in this report shows that Taith has performed well to date with high
levels of satisfaction from each stakeholder group and good progress against output targets.
Stakeholders have been particularly impressed by the pace of delivery and the scale of
progress in such a short space of time. Perhaps the main achievement is the programme’s
success in securing engagement from key target groups, specifically underrepresented
individuals and non-traditional organisations.

Pack Page 22


https://www.taith.wales/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/TAITH-Interim-Evaluation-Executive-Summary-Final-PDF.pdf

This has been crucial in ensuring that Taith has targeted the support at those who would not
be able to benefit from international exchange opportunities otherwise. This success reflects
several strengths: innovative programme design, a strategic focus on underrepresented
groups, and strong, personalised support from the delivery team.

The programme has achieved Good to Excellent value for money across most of the
indicators established. Indicators of Equity were particularly strong, with six out of eight rated
as excellent, including proportions of underrepresented and disadvantaged individuals
engaged in Taith.

Wavehill make a series of recommendations that are designed to support ongoing delivery.
The recommendations vary between some that can be implemented by Taith’s delivery team
and some that would require action from Welsh Government as the programme’s funder.
Welsh Government Officials will work with the Taith Executive team to develop an action plan
for implementing the recommendations.

The final stage of the independent evaluation of Taith is expected to be published by 31
December 2027.

In addition, the final evaluation of third phase of Global Wales is expected to be finalised in
December 2025. Delivered by Universities Wales and funded by Welsh Government via Taith,
it built on two previous phases, the first of which was launched in 2015. Wavehill was
commissioned in January 2025 to conduct the final evaluation of Global Wales Il grant
program. The Executive Summary of that evaluation will be published on Taith’s website in
line with Taith’s commitment to transparency.

| trust these responses provide further clarity on the questions raised by the Committee. We
look forward to receiving the Committee’s report ahead of Final Budget 2026-27.

Yours sincerely

Lynne Neagle MS
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Addysg
Cabinet Secretary for Education

\"l \\1 <K\'\“s

-

Vikki Howells MS
Y Gweinidog Addysg Bellach ac Uwch
Minister for Further and Higher Education

Pack Page 23



Annex 1

SEREN ACADEMY SEREN

NOVEMBER SUMMARY

November was a busy month for Seren learners in Stage 3, with highlights including
year 12s participating in the Autumn Academic Challenge Masterclasses and year 13s in
the Mentoring Programme preparing for interviews at leading universities.

Autumn Academic Challenge Masterclasses

This year's Autumn Academic Challenge consisted of 35 academic sessions delivered
over two weeks, attended by learners from across all 14 hubs. There were 18 STEM and
17 Humanities sessions. Furthermore, 7 Welsh medium sessions were delivered.
Attendance increased significantly from 2024:

Total attendances Individual learners Avg. session attendance
3,619 1,084 103
2024 attendance: 2,133 2024 learners: 666 2024 average: 69

Number of learners in attendance per hub:

Swansea

EAS 96
Rhondda Cynon Taff T

Neath Port Talbor
Vale of Glamorgan [ ey

Bridgend
Gwynedd and Anglesey Manchester
Powys o 53
Conwy and Denbighshire [[ENENNEG =
Flintshire and Wrexham 34 Exeter
a.8%

Caerphilly

Merthyr Tydfil = 5

Oxford

Interview 4T 4%

invites

Mentoring Programme 2025

All 410 learners that registered for the
2025 Mentoring Programme  were
matched with a mentor. 73% of matches

have had at least one mentoring session, e

an increase from 42% in 2024. So far,

mentor-mentee pairings have completed

645 sessions this year, with many more 60+ learners on the Mentoring
interview prep sessions scheduled for the Programme have been invited to an

coming weeks. interview at a leading university so far.

Pack Page 24



7
Sarah Murphy AS/MS Ag en d)@?:ifﬁ ' 3

Y Gweinidog lechyd Meddw! a Llesiant d _~
Minister for Mental Health and Wellbeing = ;‘Q

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref:

Buffy Williams MS

Chair

Children, Young People and Education
Committee Senedd

senedd.children@senedd.wales

22 December 2025
Dear Buffy

Thank you for the committee’s letter on 1 December requesting further clarification about
perinatal mental health support.

In my previous letter, | referenced the review the Strategic Programme for Mental Health
(SPMH) had undertaken of its internal governance and implementation structures to enable
it to meet the requirements of the Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy. This has been
concluded and, as a result it has been decided to replace the Perinatal Clinical
Implementation Network with a Community of Practice.

In respect to clinical leadership, the programme’s clinical lead posts now cover all areas of
mental health, with a work programme aligned with the strategy.

As set out in my September letter these are:
e Clinical psychologist (adult and older adult mental health, perinatal,
eating disorders)
e Registered mental health nurse (acute and crisis care)
e Consultant psychiatrist (child and adolescent mental health services)
e Clinical psychologist (psychological therapies).

In respect to your questions about the options considered and engagement undertaken, the
SPMH would be best placed to respond to your queries. Ciara Rogers, the national director
for mental health, learning disability and neurodiversity in NHS Performance and
Improvement, would be happy to provide a briefing for the committee. If this is helpful, my
office can help make the arrangements.

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

0300 0604400
Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay Gohebiaeth.Sarah.Murphy@llyw.cymru
Caerdydd « Cardiff Correspondence.Sarah.Murphy@gov.wales

CF99 1SN
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

Pack Page 25

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Sarah.Murphy@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Sarah.Murphy@gov.wales
mailto:senedd.children@senedd.wales

In transitioning from the Perinatal Clinical Implementation Network to the Community of
Practice, Hayley Thomas, who is the chief executive of Powys Teaching Health Board and
the lead chief executive for mental health has written to all NHS Wales chief executives to
make it clear that work is expected to be maintained as business as usual. This includes:

e The perinatal mental health pathways, which were developed by the clinical
implementation network, must continue to guide practice.

e All health boards must support the NHS Wales Joint Commissioning Committee to
provide access to high-quality inpatient perinatal mental healthcare.

e Prioritise meeting the Royal College of Psychiatry’s perinatal mental health standards
and report on their delivery to NHS Wales Performance and Improvement on a
quarterly basis. This will enable any gaps to be identified and addressed.

In relation to the new Seren unit in Chester, we expect a phased opening starting from this
month. In relation to Uned Gobaith, | can confirm it is intended to remain at Tonna for the
foreseeable future.

Yours sincerely,

O

Sarah Murphy AS/MS
Y Gweinidog lechyd Meddwl a Llesiant
Minister for Mental Health and Wellbeing

Pack Page 26



Medr

Y Comisiwn Addysg Drydyddol ac Ymchwil
‘Commission for Tertiary Education and Research

7 January 2026

Buffy Williams MS
Chair
Children, Young People and Education Committee

Dear Chair,
Welsh Government Draft Budget 2026-27

Thank you for your letter (dated 10 December 2025) requesting further information on waiting

lists for student places in further education colleges.

As set out in our evidence session with the Committee, there has been an increase in
participation in full time education in further education colleges in the 2025/26 academic year.
This is due to both an increased number of learners in the 16-19 age demographic and because

we have seen a higher proportion of those learners attending further education colleges.

In anticipation of the significant financial pressure resulting from this increase to participation, the
Welsh Government agreed to our request for additional funding in the 2025-26 financial year. This
enabled Medr to set aside £21m to recognise the cost of increased participation in further
education. Whilst we are in the process of finalising institutional allocations for this £21m (based
on validated data), Medr took immediate steps to guarantee each college a minimum of a 5%

increase to their core full time allocation to mitigate the risk of waiting lists for college places.

In response to your specific questions, five colleges reported waiting lists at the start of the
academic year. However, following confirmation of the additional £21m, those colleges have been
actively seeking to place learners or signpost them to alternative provision. We are only aware of
one college, Coleg Cambria, which is still in contact with 60 unplaced learners who are seeking
access to level 1 provision. Coleg Cambria have signposted these learners to other opportunities,
such as JobsGrowth Wales+ and continue to offer places where they become available. We

continue to work closely with Coleg Cambria to identify possible solutions to place these learners.

It is worth noting that in managing learner enrolments and to avoid waiting lists, all colleges have

informed us that learners may not always be placed on their first choice course. This may be

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn 2 Cwry Ddinas
Gymraeg yn Gymraeg, ac ni fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. Stryd Tyndall
Caerdydd CF10 4Bz

We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence in Welsh will be answered in 2 Capital Quarter
Welsh, and corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a qaadkraatg‘gi@? Tyndall Street
Cardiff CF10 4BZ

www.medr.cymru



Medr

Y Comisiwn Addysg Drydyddol ac Ymchwil
Commission for Tertiary Education and Research

down to learner eligibility, with colleges redirecting learners to more suitable courses, but there
has also been unprecedented demand for some courses, such as level 1 and 2 construction,
where workshop capacity limits the total number of places available. Where there are capacity
issues, colleges have worked with learners to place then on alternative, appropriate courses.

Turning to the Welsh Government’s Draft Budget for 2026-27, as highlighted in our evidence
session with the Committee, we anticipate there will be significant financial pressure resulting
from increased participation in further education. Early modelling for academic year 2026/27
suggests colleges may enrol in excess of 3,000 learners above anticipated funding levels. This
equates to circa £30m.

The Welsh Government’s Draft Budget for 2026-27 does not include additional funding to support
increased participation as it did in 2025-26. Medr will not, therefore, have the in-year capacity to
manage increased participation in the same way as we have in 2025/26 with the additional £21m.
Having published our 2026-27 funding assumptions, Medr has had a number of conversations
with College Principals and Finance Directors, who are highlighting that without additional funding

in 2026/27 every college is anticipating waiting lists at the beginning of the next academic year.

We continue to work closely with the Welsh Government and further education colleges to better
understand the potential implications of these financial pressures should additional funding not be

forthcoming.

Yours sincerely,

e —

James Owen
Chief Executive

Pack Page 28


https://www.medr.cymru/wp-content/uploads/2025/11/Funding-assumptions-for-academic-year-2026_27-English.pdf

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 6

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 29



Ag en d a Ite m 7 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 192



	Agenda
	2 Annual Scrutiny of Medr
	3.1 Information from Stakeholders
	3.2 Welsh Government Draft Budget 2026-27
	3.3 Information from Stakeholders
	3.4 Welsh Government Draft Budget 2026-27
	Welsh Government Draft Budget 2026-27

	6 Teacher recruitment and retention - consideration of the draft report
	7 School improvement and learner attainment - consideration of correspondence



